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N Shovers, Marc

From: Ramirez, Adrienne

Sent: Tuesday, February 09, 1999 9:57 AM
To: Shovers, Marc

Subject: Bill Draft Request

Marc -

Rep. Staskunas would like to draft legislation relating to the authority of local governments to grant zoning variances. | will
send over an article from the Milwaukee Journal Sentinel pertaining to the zoning problem. Apparently, the State Supreme
Court made a ruling that variances can only be approved only if an owner has no other reasonable use for the land.

If you have any questions after you receive the information, please feel free to call me. Thank you for your assistance.
Adrienne Ramirez

Office of Rep. Staskunas
6-0620
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TO: Adrienne

FROM: Tony

RE: Granting of Zoning Variances
DATE: 02-04-99
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Enclosed please find a copy of a Milwaukee Journal Sentinel article from January 31, 1999. This
article details a recent Supreme Court decision which appears to greatly restrict the authority of
local governments to grant zoning variances. The Supreme Court decision states that "Variances
should not be granted if an owner has other options that allow for reasonable use of the land."”

Apparently, a separate Appellate Court decision imposed a more rigid standard, "That a variance
should be granted only when the owner has no other use of the property.”

Under these very strict standards, even if all of the neighbors approve of the variance and the city - -

and/or local unit of government would like to approve the variance, they are apparently prevented
from approving the variance.

I would like to have a bill drafted which effectively reverses the holding of the Supreme Court
in the Huntoon case and reverses the decision of the Appellate Court in the unnamed case and

restores, very clearly, the authority and responsibility for granting variances to local zoning codes
to local municipal governments and their zoning boards of appeals.
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State of Wisconsin

LEGISLATIVE REFERENCE BUREAU
100 NORTH HAMILTON STREET

P. 0. BOX 2037
Shigr e MADISON, W1 53701-2037 LEGALPAx " (6op) 30s-0802
REFERENCE SECTION. (608) 266-0341
REFERENCE FAX. (608) 266-5648
May 26, 1999
To: Representative Tony Staskunas
From: Marc E. Shovers mw
Subject: Unnecessary hardship and zoning variances: State v. Kenosha County Board of

Adjustment, 218 Wis. 2d 396 (1998).

I have prepared this memo to explain the recent state Supreme Court decision, State v. Kenosha
County Board of Adjustment, 218 Wis. 2d 396 (1998). In this case, Kenosha County resident Ms.
Janet Huntoon desired a variance of the county shoreland setback requirement to build a deck on her
home on Hooker Lake. Generally, under Kenosha County’s shoreland zoning ordinance and the
Wisconsin Administrative Code, a structure that is adjacent to abody of water must have a minimum
75 foot setback from the water. The proposed deck would result in a 64 foot setback. Id. at 401.

The Department of Natural Resources opposed the variance, asserting that Huntoon could not
meet the statutory requirement of unnecessary hardship and that constructing the deck would be
contrary to the purpose of the shoreland zoning statutes and against the public interest. Id. at 401.
The Kenosha County Board of Adjustment (Board) found that a denial of the variance would result
in an “unnecessary hardship” and granted Ms. Huntoon a variance. The state brought suit to reverse
the Board’s decision, claiming that the Board proceeded on an improper theory of law and that its
decision was not supported by the evidence, but the circuit court and court of appeals approved the
Board’s action. Id. at 405. The state Supreme Court, however, found that the Board used an
improper legal standard in granting the variance and reversed the decision of the court of appeals.

According to the state Supreme Court, shoreland zoning ordinances, which include setback
requirements, have been enacted for a number of important reasons. “Wisconsin has a long history
of protecting its water resources . . . which depend on wetlands for their proper survival.” Id. at 406,
citation omitted. The purposes of shoreland zoning ordinances are to “further the maintenance of
safe and healthful conditions; prevent and control water pollution; protect spawning grounds, fish
and aquatic life; control building sites, placement of structure and land uses and reserve shore cover
and natural beauty.” Id. Itis within the context of these purposes of shoreland zoning ordinances that
an application for a variance must be viewed. See Id. at 421.

Both Kenosha County’s shoreland zoning ordinance and the state shoreland zoning statute
require that an applicant for a variance show “unnecessary hardship” and demonstrate “special
conditions” that justify the granting of a variance. Id. at 408-409. The county’s definition of



“unnecessary hardship” includes a requirement that “no feasible use can be made of the property”
before a variance may be granted. State statutes do not define “unnecessary hardship” but under case
law, the term means that without a variance, the property owner will have “no reasonable use of the
property.” Id. at 411 and 413.

One of the key questions in the case is, in determining whether a variance should be granted,
must a board of adjustment and the courts first look to the purposes of shoreland zoning ordinances
and then at the applicant’s request, or should a reviewing body look at an applicant’s request
primarily in terms of the burden on the applicant? Id. at413. The state took the former view and the
Board took the latter.

Based on its ordinance, the Board granted the variance for four reasons, as described on page
415 of the opinion. 1) Other structures on Hooker Lake have shorter setbacks, and it would be
unduly burdensome to deny Huntoon something that other property owners enjoy. 2) The Board
assumed Huntoon would suffer a loss of value if her variance request were denied. 3) The Board
determined that Huntoon’s property had a unique limitation because of the steep slope from her
house to the lake, and that the steep slope was dangerous. 4) The Board concluded that the public
interest is served when citizens are permitted a reasonable use of their property that is not harmful to
the public.

Although the county and state define “unnecessary hardship” in a similar fashion, the
“fundamental difference between the parties’ definitions of the unnecessary hardship standard is the
extent to which those definitions incorporate the purpose of the shoreland zoning regulations — to
enforce a uniform setback that preserves the public’s interest in shoreland and the navigable waters
of the state.” Id. at 413. The problem with the Board’s decision is that it did not take into account the
purposes of its own ordinance or the purposes of the state statute. “[W ]hether a particular hardship is
unnecessary or unreasonable is judged against the purpose of the zoning law.” Id. at 412-413.
“[T]he purpose of the zoning regulations, including uniformity, should not be lost in determination
of whether to grant a variance.” Id. at413. “When the record before the Board demonstrates that the
property owner would have reasonable use of his or her property without the variance, the purpose of
the statute takes precedence and the variance request should be denied.” Id. at 414.

The Supreme Court dismissed the Board’s four reasons for granting the variance on pages 416 to
421 of the opinion:

1) The Board claimed that other people have shorter setbacks. The court agreed with the state’s
view that evidence of such “neighborhood character” is not part of the statutory or ordinance tests.
Besides, the court noted, the factual record in the case contained no evidence that other property
owners had shorter setbacks than Huntoon. Allowing “a variance based on ‘eyeballing’ yardage in
neighboring parcels would lead to piecemeal, if not wholesale, exceptions to shoreland zoning
ordinances.” Id. at 417 to 418.

2) The Board believe that Huntoon would suffer a loss of value if denied a variance. Again, the
court found that there was no substantial evidence in the record showing that Huntoon would suffer a
loss of value; neither Huntoon nor her representative ever raised the issue. In addition, the Kenosha
County ordinance “specifically prohibits granting variances where the primary reason is one of more
profitable use of the property or other economic reasons.” Id. at418. The court also cited a previous
appeals court case for the proposition that “the proper test is not whether a variance would maximize
the economic value of the property, but whether a feasible use is possible without the variance. Id. at
413. In effect, the Board’s second reason is really an issue of Huntoon’s “personal convenience.”



3) The Board found that Huntoon’s property is unique because of the steep slope toward the
lake, which is dangerous. The court stated'that Huntoon presented no evidence that her property
presented a safety hazard in the absence of a variance. The consideration of safety by the Board
“ignores the fact that the applicant has the burden of proof on all essential elements of his or her right
to relief.” Id. at 420. The court also noted that no evidence was presented to show that the effect of
erosion on Huntoon’s land, combined with the slope, resulted in a unique situation that prevents
Huntoon from enjoying a reasonable use of her property.

4) The Board claimed that the public interest is served when citizens are allowed to use their
land in a way that does not harm the public. The court dismissed this reason because it ignores the
fact that Huntoon has a reasonable use of the property without the variance; her house and property
have been used as a residence for over 60 years. The biggest problem with the Board’s fourth reason
is that it “appears to approve of any of a number of reasonable uses, so long as it does not cause harm
to the public. The Board’s statement is too accommodating. ... One of the purposes of zoning laws is
that variances should be granted sparingly.” Id. at 421, [emphasis in original].

To summarize, the state Supreme Court held that the legislature, charged with protecting the
public interest, has determined that variance requests will be considered in light of the purposes of
the shoreland protection statutes. Id. Consequently, when a person applies for a variance, a
reviewing body must first consider the purpose of a shoreland zoning ordinance, which is to “protect
navigable waters and the public rights therein from the degradation and deterioration which results
from uncontrolled use and development of shorelands.” Id. at 406, citation omitted. After
considering the purpose of the ordinance, a variance should be granted rarely: “only when the
applicant has demonstrated that he or she will have no reasonable use of the property, in the absence
of a variance, is an unnecessary hardship present.” Id. at421. Because the Board did not look to the
purpose of the shoreland zoning ordinance first, it applied the wrong legal standard in granting
Huntoon a variance. Furthermore, Huntoon had a reasonable use of her property without the
variance, and the Board lacked substantial evidence on which to base its conclusion of unnecessary
hardship.

Please let me know if you have any further questions about this issue.
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AN Act Nifelating to: changing the standards under which certain zoning

variances may be granted by a local board of adjustment or appeals.

Analysis by the Legislative Reference Bureau

Ungder current law, a city, village, town that is authorized to exercise village
powersY(municipality) or county is authorized to enact zoning ordinances that
regulate and restrict the height, number of stories and size of buildings and other
structures, the percentage of lot that may be occupied, the size of yards and other
open spaces, the density of population and the location and use of buildings,
structures and land for various purposes.

A municipality’s board of appeals or a county’s board of adjustment is
authorized under current law to hear and decide appeals that allege that there is an
error in the enforcement of a zoning ordinance, to hear and decide special exceptions
to the terms of a zoning ordinance and to authorize a variance from the terms of a_, ya%
zoning ordinances. A “use” variance grants permission for a use ighy1s not
permitted by the zoning ordinance and an “area” variance relaxes restrictions on
dimensions, such as setback, frontage, height, bulk, density and area. To grant a
variance, a board of appeals or board of adjustment must find 4 things:

1. The variance will not be contrary to the public interest. Louc

2. Substantial justice will be done by granting the variance.

3. The variance is needed so that the spirit of the ordinance is observed.

4. Due to special conditions, a literal enforcement of the provisions of the zoning
ordinance will result in unnecessary hardship.

Although the term “unnecessary hardship” is not defined in the statutes, a
recent decision of the Wisconsin Supreme Court, State v. Kenosha County Board of
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Adjustment, 218 Wis. 2d 396, 398 (1998), held that the legal standard of unnecessary
hardship requires that the property owner demonstrate that without the variance,
he or she has no reasonable use of the property.

Under this bill, a property owner may establish “unnecessary hardship” by
demonstrating that strict compliance with an area zoning ordinance would
unreasonably prevent the property owner from using the property for a permitted
purpose or would render conformity with the zoning ordinance unnecessarily
burdensome.

For further information see the state and local fiscal estimate, which will be
printed as an appendix to this bill.

The people of the state of Wisconsin, represented in senate and assembly, do

enact as follows:
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the locations indicated, amend the bill as follows:

A

59.694 (7) (c) To authorize upon appeal in specific cases variances from the

. Page 793, line 14: after that line insert:

> .
ECTION r&?g 59.694 (7) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

terms of the ordinance that will not be contrary to the public interest, where, owing
to special conditions, a literal enforcement of the provisions of the ordinance will

result in unnecessary hardship, and so that the spirit of the ordinance shall be

observed and substantial justice done. \Except in dagses where a propekty owner

requests a variance fromnan ordinancdenacted under sN\39.692, or adopded or

reinstated by the departmenthg sgources under s. 38.692 (7)., or 3
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12 hardship”, as that term is used in this paragraph, by demonstrating that strict
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compliance with an area zoning ordinance would unreasonably prevent the propert

owner from using the property owner’s property for a permitted purpose or would

render conformity with the zoning ordinance unnecessaril burdensome@/

2. e 797, h a at lihensert:
%CTION 1‘%62.23 (7) (e) 7. of the statutes is amended to read:

62.23 (7) (e) 7. The board of appeals shall have the following powers: To hear

and decide appeals where it is alleged there is error in any order, requirement,
decision or determination made by an administrative official in the enforcement of
this section or of any ordinance adopted pursuant thereto; to hear and decide special
exception to the terms of the ordinance upon which such board is required to pass
under such ordinance; to authorize upon appeal in specific cases such variance from
the terms of the ordinance as will not be contrary to the public interest, where, owing
to special conditions, a literal enforcement of the provisions of the ordinance will
result in practical difficulty or unnecessary hardship, so that the spirit of the
ordinance shall be observed, public safety and welfare secured, and substantial
justice done. The board may permit in appropriate cases, and subject to appropriate
conditions and safeguards in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the
ordinance, a building or premises to be erected or used for such public utility

purposes in any location which is reasonably necessary for the public convenience

and welfare. JExcept in cases Where-a.property owner requests a variance frev-s

ordinance enacted under s. 59.692, 61.351 or 62-231 7 adopted by the department

of natural resources unders:. 61.351 (6) or 62.231 (6), or from a conser;rancy zoning

ordimance) a property owner may establish “unnecessary hardship”, as that term is

o

——

used in this subdivision, by demonstrating that strict compliance with an area
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zoning ordinance would unreasonably-prevent the property owner from using the

property owner’s property for a permitted purpose or would render conformity with

the zoning ordinance unnecessarily burdensome(: '

(END)
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The attached draft is submitted for your inspection. Please check each part carefully, proofread each word, and
sign on the appropriate line(s) below.

Date: 6/18/99 To: Representative Staskunas

Relating to LRB drafting number: LRB-2207

Topic
Authority of local governments to grant zoning variances
Subject(s)
Munis - miscellaneous, Counties ? /Z/ %
1. JACKET the draft for introduction
in the Senate _____ or the Assembly (check only one) Only the requester under whose hame the

drafting request is entered in the LRB’s drafting records may authorize the draft to be submitted. Please
allow one day for the preparation of the required copies.

2. REDRAFT. See the changes indicated or attached

A revised draft will be submitted for your approval with changes incorporated.

3. Obtain FISCAL ESTIMATE NOW, prior to introduction

If the analysis indicates that a fiscal estimate is required because the proposal makes an appropriation or
increases or decreases existing appropriations or state or general local government fiscal liability or
revenues, you have the option to request the fiscal estimate prior to introduction. If you choose to
introduce the proposal without the fiscal estimate, the fiscal estimate will be requested automatically upon
introduction. It takes about 10 days to obtain a fiscal estimate. Requesting the fiscal estimate prior to
introduction retains your flexibility for possible redrafting of the proposal.

If you have any questions regarding the above procedures, please call 266-3561. If you have any questions

relating to the attached draft, please feel free to call me.

Marc E. Shovers, Senior Legislative Attorney
Telephone: (608) 266-0129






